
 
 

 
 
 

 
NAPERVILLE TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY BOARD 

MINUTES OF DECEMBER 5, 2015  
 

Call to Order   
 

 8:00 a.m.

A. Roll Call 
 

 
 

Present:   Amberg, Benson, DiGiovine-Gehrs, Fischer, Floegel, Gustin, Haddad, 
McIntosh, Montgomery, Preissig, Smith 

Absent: None 
Staff Present:  
 

Deputy Director Jennifer Louden 
Deputy City Engineer Andy Hynes 
Police Commander Ken Parcel 
 

B. Minutes Approve the minutes from the October 3, 2015 Transportation Advisory 
Board meeting. 
 

 Transportation Advisory Board Questions/Discussion:  
 

 Approve the minutes from the October 3, 2015 
Transportation Advisory Board meeting. 
 
Motion by: McIntosh 
Second by: Benson 
 
Abstain:  Fischer 
 

Approved 
(10 to 0) 

 
 

C. Public Forum 
 

N/A 

D.  Old Business N/A 

E.  Public Hearings N/A 

F.  Reports and Recommendations 
 
F1.  City Council Report   

 October 6 – Floegel – City Council approved temporary parking for 
Standard Market.  Councilwoman Gustin discussed fees for parking 
at the train station.  

 October 20 – Gustin – Kendall Elementary School parking 
restrictions were approved. 

 November 3 – Haddad - No transportation items discussed. 
 November 17 – McIntosh – No transportation items discussed. 
 December 1 - Louden – No transportation related agenda items.  Two 

residents from the Tall Grass subdivision spoke at public forum 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 
 

regarding noise and intersection blocking at the intersection of 248th 
Street and Grassmere Lane. 

  
F2.  Police Department Report 

  Commander Parcel reported traffic flow on Route 59 is much 
improved compared to other recent holiday seasons. 

 
F3.  North Avenue Daily Fee Parking Restrictions  
 

Louden provided a summary of the proposed parking restrictions on North 
Avenue east of Center Street.  Based on a sight distance study, larger vehicles 
are creating visibility issues. 

 
Fischer 

 Asked about the crash history at this location.  Louden responded that 
there is no significant crash issue at the location. 

 Fischer 
 Asked about the enforcement activity at the location.  Commander 

Parcel responded that there is daily enforcement at the commuter 
station. 

 Benson  
 Stated that this is an appropriate solution to the issue. 

Amberg 
 Asked staff to explain how these types of requests are analyzed. 

Louden replied that staff evaluates these requests against federal sight 
distance standards.  In this case, sight distance was measured both from 
the stop bar as well as the location where motorists make their decision 
to turn. 

 Amberg 
 Stated that another option would be to eliminate parking on the north 

side of the street.  Louden clarified that the sight distance specific to 
northbound vehicles so the issue would still remain if parking on the 
north side of the street was eliminated.  

DiGiovine-Gehrs  
 Asked if there will be a notification process.  Louden replied that any 

time parking regulations are changed, staff does provide notice. 
Gustin 

 Asked how compact cars are defined.  Louden stated that the 
definition in the Illinois Vehicle Code would be followed. 

Gustin 
 Asked if height is a concern.  Louden replied that height is a concern 

and would be addressed in this recommendation. 
  



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 
 

Fischer 
 Stated that he agrees with the definition of compact cars.  Concerned 

that this recommendation will address the issue.  Suggested that the 
diagonal and parallel spaces be flipped from north to south. 

McIntosh 
 Asked if the parking spaces be individually signed.  Louden 

stated that we will need to evaluate the spaces to determine the best 
way to sign it. 

Smith 
 Stated that there is more southbound traffic on Center Street and 

flipping the parking arrangement would make the situation worse.  He 
frequently drives this route and sight distance from stop bar is not 
sufficient and drivers need to pull forward before turning.  The 
proposed recommendation is not perfect but will help. 

Fischer 
 Stated that he agreed that flipping the parking arrangement would 

make matters worse for southbound traffic.  This is an enforcement 
issue on first two parking spaces. 

Amberg 
 Stated that he took the train for many years and the enforcement 

officer is very thorough.  Commander Parcel confirmed that there is a 
dedicated officer for enforcement of the commuter lots. 

Fischer  
 Asked if this is an enforcement issue/history with the first two parking 

spaces that are already restricted to compact cars?  Louden replied 
that based on field observations, the larger vehicles are typically 
parking in the third parking space.  Noted that he is concerned with 
restricting commuter spaces because they are in high demand. 

Gustin 
 Stated that the restrictions have been in place since 1995 and asked if 

there is a history of crashes or complaints.  Louden replied that during 
the most recent three years, staff found no crashes directly related to 
sight distance. 

Gustin 
 Stated that the height visibility is the issue.  Suggested that the spaces 

prohibit vans.  Louden stated that staff will review the definition of 
compact cars and adjust the recommendation as necessary before 
going forward to City Council. 

Benson 
 Stated that there are many pedestrians that cross at this location.  The 

visibility of pedestrians is blocked as well as vehicular movements. 
Amberg 

 Asked for the cost of this change.  Louden replied that the cost to 
install the signs is less than $100. 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 
 

Gustin 
 Asked if the changes to the recommendation would require a different 

action by the Transportation Advisory Board.  Louden replied that the 
City Council recommendation would be an ordinance limiting 
parking to compact cars.  If the recommendation falls outside of what 
is considered a compact car, then staff would return to TAB for further 
discussion. 

Amberg 
 Stated that in previous studies, intersections with unusual geometry 

can have fewer crashes because drivers are more cautious. 
 

Recommend approval to amend the compact car parking restrictions 
on the south side of North Avenue as outlined in the ordinance. 

Approved
(8-2)

Motion by: McIntosh 
Second by: Smith 
 
Ayes: Amberg, DiGiovine-Gehrs, Floegel, McIntosh, Haddad,  
Montgomery, Preissig, Smith 
 
Nays: Fischer, Gustin 
 
Abstain: Benson (submitted the request) 

 
F4.  Apple River Drive & River Woods Drive All-Way Stop 
 

Louden provided a summary of the evaluation of a request at the intersection of 
Apple River Drive and River Woods Drive to convert the existing two way stop to 
an all-way stop.  The intersection does not meet the City’s standard all-way stop 
criteria.  However, this is a primary crossing for students attending River Woods 
Elementary School.  Both the school and School District 203 administrators support 
the recommendation.  
 

Fischer 
 Asked if staff contacted the Homeowner’s Association. Louden 

replied that for school routes, staff typically discusses school route 
crossings with the school and school district and do not contact the 
Homeowner’s Association. 

Preissig 
 Stated that TAB has denied other intersections that do not meet the 

worksheet criteria.  Asked if the worksheet should be revised to 
accommodate this type of situation.  Louden replied that MUTCD 
standards do allow for engineering judgement to be used in situations 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 
 

such as this one.  Naperville does have a history of implementing stop 
controls for primary school crossing locations. 

Preissig 
 Stated that all-stops for these situations also affect drivers for the other 

23 ½ hours of the day. 
DiGiovine-Gehrs 

 Asked what the protocol is for crossing guards on school routes and 
are there any on this route.  Louden responded that there is a teacher 
volunteer crossing guard at the midblock crossing on River Woods 
south of Naper Blvd.  Commander Parcel stated that there is also City 
provided crossing guard at the Naper and River Woods intersection.  
The City’s crossing guards are usually located on larger thoroughfares 
such as Naper Blvd. 

Benson 
 Stated that she has concern for the school children but traffic changes 

have significant impacts to motorists during other parts of the day.  
The school should consider adding a crossing guard or educational 
outreach. Louden replied that the school walk route directs students 
to the mid-block crossing at the west side of the school where the 
teacher volunteer crossing guard is located.  Most students are 
actually going to the east side of the school because of the playground 
and school entrances. 

Haddad 
 Asked if people generally oppose all-way stops.  Louden replied that 

there is generally little opposition. 
Haddad 

 Stated that he was involved with designating the walk route in his 
neighborhood and feels that most drivers are traveling slower in 
school areas and want to stop for children anyway making the extra 
time for all-way stops negligible.  Supports the recommendation. 

Gustin 
 Stated that one problem with all-way stops is the noise from cars 

braking.  How are children informed of where to cross?  Do we have 
any information on vehicle speeds?  Louden replied that the City 
shares the walk routes with the school.  The school shares the walk 
route maps with the parents who teach the students.  Stop controls are 
not used to control speeds.  However, staff did collect speed data at 
this location and did not identify a speeding concern. 

Floegel 
 Stated that it is important to consider the school’s input when 

evaluating requests near the school.  He would support the 
recommendation. 

  



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 
 

Benson 
 Asked if neighbors were notified?  Louden replied that neighbors or 

neighborhoods are not typically notified of proposed changes in stop 
control. 

Amberg 
 Stated that most schools have fifth grade patrol.  Asked if this school 

has fifth grade patrol?  Louden stated that she believes most schools 
have a fifth grade patrol. 

Fischer 
 Stated that he believes that the fifth grade patrol would be a better 

solution for this situation and it is only needed for ½ hour a day.  
Believes that the school should add more volunteers to this location.  
Asked if there was a crash history at this location.  Louden replied that 
there is not a crash history at this location. 

Haddad 
 Asked if there are multiple stops on this street.  Louden responded 

that the intersection of Naper Boulevard and River Woods Drive is 
signalized.  The next all-way stop on River Woods is at Alexandria. 

Haddad 
 Stated that this is a through street with few stops.  The inconvenience 

would be that it would slow drivers down a little.  Louden replied that 
this is a 25 mph residential street. 

Montgomery 
 Asked if staff evaluated other options such adding in-pavement 

flashing lights with a push button?  Louden responded that the City 
has set criteria for implementing marked crossings in uncontrolled 
locations.  Those criteria would not be met for this situation.  Those 
types of measures are also very costly. 

Gustin 
 Asked if this recommendation would move forward to City Council.  

Louden replied the stop control would need to be codified therefore 
this measure would move forward to City Council even if TAB has a 
negative recommendation. 

Gustin 
 Stated that is an important point because if people do object they have 

another chance to voice their opinion.  Other options beyond stop 
signage do have cost implications.  He supports the recommendation. 

Amberg 
 As a point of clarification, Maplebrook only has fifth grade crossing 

guards at all-way stops.  Adding City crossing guards comes at a cost.  
Asked if staff evaluated time restrictions for the stop?  Louden 
responded that if an all-way stop at this location is not approved, then 
the current mid-block crossing location would remain and no changes 
to the walk route would be made. 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 
 

Amberg 
 Asked if it is an option to add stop when pedestrians are present.  

Louden responded that such signage already exists at a location a few 
blocks away and so that would only shift the crossing signage from one 
location to the other. 

Benson 
 Asked for the distance between the proposed all-way stop and the 

crossing with flashing lights.  Louden clarified that the existing mid-
block crossing does not have flashing lights, but has the standard 
crossing treatment of a crosswalk and two signs.  The distance is 
approximately 600 feet. 

Amberg 
 Asked if the mid-block crossing for Fox River Lane remain.  Louden 

responded that the existing mid-block crossing would be removed.  
The walk route would show students coming from Fox River Lane 
traveling to Apple River to cross. 

Fischer 
 Asked for confirmation that the existing mid-block crossing would 

be eliminated.  Louden confirmed that the crossing would be 
removed. 

DiGiovine-Gehrs 
 What is the community outreach for safe routes to school and could 

this set a precedent?  Louden replied that staff is not re-evaluating the 
entire school walk route system.  This is an isolated case where we 
noticed a significant number of students crossing at this location. 

DiGiovine-Gehrs 
 Asked if it is up to the schools to educate the students on the crossing 

route.  Louden responded that both the school and the City are 
involved in the education component of the school walk route. 

Floegel 
 Asked if staff could confirm that the recommendation is to eliminate 

the existing mid-block crossing and the houses west of the school 
would need to go south to Apple River Drive.  Louden confirmed that 
the houses west of the school should use the controlled crossings at 
Naper Blvd or at Apple River crossing. 

Fischer 
 Asked what would prevent the school from moving their crossing 

guard from the mid-block crossing to River Woods Drive.  Louden 
replied that the walk route would not be changed and that if students 
are crossing at an uncontrolled location that a mid-block is better than 
an intersection because there is better visibility and fewer turning 
movements. 

  



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 
 

Amberg 
 Illustrated the proposed recommendation using an aerial photo on the 

overhead projector. 
Gustin 

 Asked if the signage for the existing mid-block crossing is controlled 
by the City.  Louden confirmed that the signage was installed by the 
City for the original walk route. 

 Gustin 
 Asked why we would remove the mid-block crossing.  He would 

support adding a crossing at River Woods but not removal of the 
midblock crossing.  

 Benson 
 Expressed interest in the information related to the denial of the 

original request.  Not sure that this is a solution particularly if we are 
removing the existing mid-block crossing. 

 Haddad 
 Asked if staff could confirm that there is a stop sign on River Woods 

Drive at the school.  Louden stated that there is not a stop on River 
Woods at the school. 

 Haddad 
 Stated that he would support keeping the existing mid-block crossing. 

 DiGiovine-Gehrs 
 She would support retaining the existing mid-block crossing but 

designating the walk route to the proposed all-way stop.  Louden 
responded that TAB may direct staff to retain it. 

 Amberg 
 Asked for the origin of the request.  Louden responded that the request 

was initiated by a resident request for an all-way stop and staff 
contacted the school after observing the volume of students crossing 
at this intersection. 

 Amberg 
 Stated that there was no discussion with the school district that the 

mid-block crossing.  Louden replied the school walk route would 
show the crossing at River Woods but the mid-block crossing 
markings and signage could remain. 

 Gustin 
 Asked to make another variance to the standard procedure.  Louden 

stated that this would not be a variance. 
 Gustin    

 Asked if both crossings can be shown on the school walk route.  
Louden agreed that some students will still cross at the mid-block 
crossing.  The recommendation is based upon where many students 
are actually crossing.  However, the walk route map generally shows 
one route using stop controlled intersections when available. 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 
 
 McIntosh 

 Stated that 10-15 students currently cross at Apple River Drive.  
However, no information about the number of students crossing at the 
existing midblock crossing is provided. 

Amberg 
 Asked for clarification on the motion. 

Gustin 
 Motion to amend the recommendation to add the stop controls at 

Riverwoods Drive and Apple River Drive and to retain the existing 
midblock crossing.  Louden restated that the current motion is to add 
an all-way stop at Apple River Drive and keep the existing midblock 
crossing. 

 
Recommend approval of the establishment of an all-way stop at 
Apple River Drive and River Woods Drive and maintain the existing 
mid-block crossing on River Woods Drive. 

Approved
(11-0)

Motion by: Gustin 
Second by: DiGiovine-Gehrs 

 

 
G. Correspondence  

 
G1. Installation of “School Entrance Ahead” warning signs for Ann Reid Early 

Childhood Center 
 
 Louden informed TAB that warning signage was added on Naper Boulevard in 

advance to the Ann Reid School to warn motorists of the upcoming school entrance.  
The school has revised their drop off procedure to reduce the potential for vehicles 
stacking on Naper Blvd.  Those changes have improved the situation. 

 
  Amberg 

 Summarized the situation by stating that the school was not using their 
parking lot efficiently.  The school adjusted their operations and the 
City is adding warning signage. 

   Gustin 
 Asked if an advisory sign is enforceable?  Commander Parcel replied 

that the speed limit is advisory and the actual speed limit is still in 
effect. 

   
G2. Recommendation for Calendar Year 2016, First Quarter Commuter Permit 

Issuance and Space Utilization Report  
 
Louden summarized the commuter parking permits.  No new permits have been 
issued in the most recent quarter.  She also noted that the permit quarters were 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 
 

transitioned to match the new calendar fiscal year.  Staff will be providing TAB with 
a copy of the 2008 rate study.  City Council requested that staff provide a summary 
of parking fees for other area municipalities.  Staff will provide this information to 
TAB and City Council. 

 
Benson 

 Stated that the quarterly parking report did not indicate if additional 
people were contacted for instances where permits were not accepted.  
Louden replied that the City does not extend offers to additional people 
because the offer rate assumes that a number of offers won’t be 
accepted. 

Amberg 
 Asked how many people use the two Naperville stations on a daily 

basis.  Louden responded that between the two stations, about 10,000 
people use the Metra trains. 

Smith 
 Asked how people on the waiting list are notified.  Louden responded 

that people on the waiting list are issued a formal offer letter. 
Amberg 

 Stated that people can check on their position on the waiting list at any 
time. 

Gustin 
 Asked if the total costs of using the commuter trains (Metra pass plus 

parking permit cost) has been compared between municipalities.  
Louden indicated that the fee summary will compare stations along the 
BNSF line and Metra Zone information could be added. 

 
H. New Business         

Floegel 
 Thanked staff for the training presentation. 

Amberg 
 Stated that four TAB members still need to attend the training. 

Haddad 
 Asked if the traffic signals have been coordinated on Route 59.  Hynes 

replied that IDOT maintains the two signal systems along Route 59 and 
the south system was retimed approximately 5 to 6 years ago. 

Haddad 
 Asked if IDOT could re-evaluate that system.  Hynes responded that 

he could follow up with IDOT, but would want to wait until the signal 
programming for the new portion of Route 59 is complete. 

Amberg 
 Asked if Naperville has any jurisdiction over Route 59. Hynes 

confirmed that the State maintains Route 59.  Staff has a good 
relationship with IDOT and can make inquiries at the appropriate time. 



Naperville Transportation Advisory Board 
December 5, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 
 
 
I. Adjournment 9:10 a.m. 

 
Motion by: McIntosh 
Second by: Smith  

 
Approved 
(11-0) 

 


